MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 6-7-2023 MEETING AGENDA

MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
P. O. BOX 1029
MENDOCINO, CA 95460
Business Phone (707) 937-5790 Treatment Plant (707) 937-5751 Fax (707) 937-3837

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING

Wednesday, June 7, 2023

5:00 PM

Wastewater Treatment Plant, 10500 Kelly Street, Mendocino

1. CALLTO ORDER

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. PUBLIC COMMENT: non agenda items
4. COMMUNICATIONS

5. FINANCIAL REPORT

Discussion and Possible Action to Approve District Disbursements/Expenditures.

6. CONSENT AGENDA
All matters on the Consent Agenda are to be approved by one action without discussion unless a Board
Member requests separate action on a specific item.
a) APPROVAL OF MINUTES from 4-19-23
b} APPROVAL OF MINUTES from 5-8-23

7. CORRECTION OF PAST MINUTES
a) APPROVAL OF MINUTES from 3-3-23

8. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING ANY CONSENT AGENDA ITEM NEEDING SEPARATE
ACTION
9. GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT

Monthly Groundwater Management Report

10. NEW BUSINESS

a) Introduction and Discussion of Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 23-24

b) Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Audit for the year end of June 30, 2022
Staff recommends a motion to approve the 21-22 audit, year ending June 30, 2022

C) Discussion and Possible Action to support the installation of a County funded EV station
Staff recommends approval to support the instaliation of a County funded EV station

d) Discussion anc Possible Action to authorize the District Superintendeant to spend up to $100,000
to address the Treatment Plant Air Supply Line
Staff recommends approval to authorize District Superintendent to spend up to $100,000 to
address the Treatment Plant Air Supply Line

e) Discussion and Possible Action to direct Staff to conduct a review and update of all District
records and properties related to approved development
Staff is seeking direction from the Board

1L OLD BUSINESS




MENDOCINO CiITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 6-7-2023 MEETING AGENDA

12. DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
Monthly Report.

13. COMMITTEE UPDATES
14. MATTERS FROM BOARD MEMBERS

15. ADJIOURNMENT

STANDING COMMITTEES: For 2023

Finance: Dennak Murphy and Ishvi Aum
Personnel: Dennak Murphy and Matthew Miksak
Plant Operations: Dennak Murphy and Jim Sullivan
Safety: Jim Sullivan

Street Lighting: Jim Sullivan and Donna Feiner
Groundwater Management:------w-emrmm--- Jim Sullivan and Donna Feiner

Pursuant to Americans with Disability Act (ADA Title 1), MCCSD will make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility to the meeting. If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the
business office ot 707- 937-5790.




BOARD OF DIRECTORS — ACTION MINUTES — April 19, 2023 Page 1 of 5
MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 1029

Mendocino, CA 95460
(707) 937-5790 (t)
(707) 937-5751 (1)

Fax (707) 937-3837 (f)
mccsd@mecen.org

MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
ACTION MINUTES - APRIL 19,2023

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FAIR STATEMENT OF PRG, EDINGS
(PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA COMMUNiTYSERViCES DISTRICT LAW
Government Code §61000)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1~ CALL TO ORDER - 5:00 p.m.

Present: Directors Ishvi Aum, Matthew Mlksak'~“~VP Jim Sulhvan and_p siding was PreSIdent Dennak Murphy

Staff Present: Mr. Ryan Rhoades, District Sup rin ndent Kat:e Bat‘eé*Board Secretary.

Legal Counsel Present: None

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA A

Board Action: Upon motion by VP Sulhvan and 2“@‘ by Dlrector Aum, IT IS ORDERED to approve the agenda. The
Motion carried by the followung vote: : ”kffk':f‘ e

AYE: 4

NO: 0

ABSENT: 1 (Femer)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 -—PUBLSC COMMENT

None

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 - COMMUNICATIONS

Superintendent Rhoades noted MCCSD’s press release published in Mendocino Beacon, the Mendo Voice,
and on Facebook on the 5" District page.

Superintendent Rhoades noted a comment received today, 4/19/23 on the draft MOU with MUSD, posted
below:



BOARD OF DIRECTORS — ACTION MINUTES — April 19, 2023 Page 2 of 5

Directors Miksak, Aum, Feiner, Sullivan, and Murphy, Superintendent Rhoades;

We appreciate the opportunity to comment on the 4/19/23 Regular Meeting of the MCCSD Board of
Directors in the matter of Item 9(b), Discussion and Possible Action to adopt a MOU with MUSD.

Many of your customers share concerns we have for the revised MOU slated for discussion and possible
action today. Of primary concern is an omission in the opening paragraph which effectively removes
original language describing the planned water supply and storage project as one, for the benefit of the
village of Mendocino". As a member of the Board of Directors at the time the MCCSD applied to the
Department of Water Resources for an Urban and Multibenefit Drought Relief Grant which secured the
$4,932,000 million in grant funding necessary to advance the project, a project she supported, Christina
can confirm that the town of Mendocino and Fire Departments were intended to be the principal
beneficiaries of water produced by the project. The project was framed this way to the community to
reduce its dependence on importing water from neighboring water districts to meet customers' needs. The
MUSD school district maintains a State permitted public water system and is one of several neighboring
systems our town has relied upon in the past. According to the current terms of the MOU the school
district is being given priority to the water. This does not resolve the town of Mendocino's dependence on
neighboring systems.

We protest the terms of this agreement which give the school district priority to "all water on MUSD
property”. The MCCSD covers a district of a single square mile; the MUSD covers a far greater area,
240 times larger. Despite the fact that the MCCSD was responsible for securing nearly 5 million dollars
in grant funding and that it will be responsible for proportionate costs including operation and
maintenance of the storage tanks, well development, groundwater extraction, and any water accessed by
them, as well as being responsible for other costs associated with well maintenance, use, and replacement,
by the terms of the MOU, the MCCSD appears willing to accept whatever may be remaining from school
district needs. This agreement, as written, fails to specify what those needs are, leaving many residents of
Mendocino, us among them, very concerned that the district is giving away water originally that was
intended for them. By all appearances, this is a poor business decision. We urge that MCCSD return to
discussions with MUSD, this time public and properly-noticed, which would result in renegotiating the
terms of the MOU so that it will better benefit the community.

Another concern we share is with regard to the eligibility, distribution, allocation, and users' costs of any
water used by MCCSD rate-payers. Under current terms, the "equitable access to water during periods of
drought will be mutually determined between MUSD and MCCSD once all MUSD potable water needs
are met”. This language is not only vague but vulnerable to interpretation, and has not included the
opportunity for public comment. While serving on the board of the MCCSD, former Director O'Rourke
and I pressed for developing and establishing criteria in advance for the equitable allocation and
distribution of any water stored. Our concerns were dismissed. Land acquisition or annexation also
needs discussion, especially since grant funding sources will often cover the cost. It is our hope that
newer board members may be more effective today in understanding the importance of prudent decision-
making and in protecting our community and its residents' future water needs.

Without more equitable terms, we do not support the MOU as written and urge the board to renegotiate it
and establish distribution criteria prior to entering any agreement with MUSD. We are concerned that
proceeding otherwise would be negligent.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS ~ ACTION MINUTES ~ April 19, 2023 Page J0f5

[

We ask that our comments be read during today's discussion of Item 9(b) and request that staff please
place them into the public record.

Thank you,

Christina and Bob Aranguren

cc: Michelle Blackwell
bee: Interested parties

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5- FINANCIAL REPORT

Board Comment: Director Aum and President Murphy
Staff Comment: Superintendent Rhoades and sttnct Secretary Bates

Board Action: Upon motion by VP Sullivan and 2 by Dlrector Miksak, IT1s ORDERED to approve the March
disbursements. The Motion carried by the fo!lowmg vote: ‘

AYE: 4
NO: 0

ABSENT: 1 (Feiner) .
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6: CONSENT'AG‘ENDA

APPROVAL OF 2-27-23 and 3-3 23 MIN(}TES

Board Action: Upon motion by DirectorAv seconded by D;rector Miksak, IT IS ORDERED to approve the
consent agenda. The Motion camed by the followmg vote E
AYE: 4 e . -

NQO: 0

Sek

ABSENT: 1 (Feiner)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING ANY CONSENT AGENA ITEM
NEEDING SEPARATE ACTION

None

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8- GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT

Presenter: Ryan Rhoades

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 — NEW BUSINESS

a) Discussion and Possible Action to adopt Resolution 2023-315: RESOLUTION OF MENDOCINO CITY
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO RESCIND RESOLUTION 2023-308 AND DECLARE NO WATER
SHORTAGE CONDITION EXISTS AT THIS TIME
Presenter: Superintendent Rhoades



BOARD OF DIRECTORS — ACTION MINUTES — April 19, 2023 Page 4 of 5

Board Action: Upon motion by Director Miksak, seconded by VP Sullivan, IT IS ORDERED to approve Resolution
2023-316. The Motion carried by the following vote:

AYE: 4

NO: 0
ABSENT: 1 (Feiner)
b) Discussion and Possible Action to adopt an MOU with MUSD

Staff Comment: Superintendent Rhoades
Board Comment: Director Aum, VP Sullivan, President Murphy
Public Comment: Michelle Blackwell

Board Action: Upon motion by Director Miksak, seconded by VP Su i nIT IS ORDERED to adopt the MOU with
MUSD. The Motion carried by the following vote:

AYE: 4
NO: 0
ABSENT: 1 (Feiner)

¢) Discussion and Possible Action to adopt Resolutio 1 2023-316: RESOLUTION OF MENDOCINO CITY
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO AMEND 4.1 OF THE MCCSD PERSONNEL MANUAL,
HOLIDAYS

Staff Comment: Supermtendent Rhoades D;stnct}Secretary Bates
Board Comment: Director Aum, VP Suihvan, Pressd nt
Public Comment: Michelle Bfackwel! ' s

Board Action: Upon motion by ‘Director Femer seconde ;by Director Aum lT IS ORDERED to approve Resolution
2023-316. The Motion carried by the followmg vote
AYE: 4 : i

NO: 0 ;
ABSENT: 1 (Feiner)
AGENDA ITEM NO. 10- OLD BUSINESS

None

AGENDA ITEM No. 11 — SECRETARY’S REPORT
Presenter: Katie Bates '

AGENDA ITEM NO. 12: SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
Staff Comment: Ryan Rhoades

Board Comment: Directors Aum, and President Murphy
Public Comment: Michelle Blackwell

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13- COMMITTEE UPDATES

None



BOARD OF DIRECTORS — ACTION MINUTES — April 19, 2023 Page S of 5

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14: MATTER FROM BOARD MEMBERS

Board Comment: Director Aum

AGENDA ITEM NO. 18: ADJOURNMENT
IT1S ORDERED to approve adjourning the meeting at 6:42 p.m.

NOTICE: PUBLISHED MINUTES OF THE MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT MEETINGS

s Effective May 11, 2020, the Board of Directors’ minutes Wi//lb roduced in “action only” format.
e Minutes are considered draft until adopted/approved b Y. th’ ,;Bo of Directors

e Please reference the District's website to obtain addlt/onal resource i ‘ormation for the Board of Directors:
www.mcesd.com. T

Thank you for your interest in the proceedings:;\; f :'fhe Mendocino City‘ Céﬁ?munity Services District

STANDING COMMITTEES:

Finance:------- - Der

Personnel:--- - ‘ “Dem}ak Mumhv and Matthew Miksak
Plant Operations: — -~ Dennak Mumhx and J1m Sulhvan
Safety: -

Street Lighting: sk
Groundwater Manaoement‘ ; -

Respectfully sqbrh‘i‘ﬁé/d}k -

Ryan Rhoades ahd Katie Bates



BOARD OF DIRECTORS — ACTION MINUTES ~Mav 8, 2023 Page 1 of 2
MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 1029
Mendocino, CA 95460
(707) 937-5790 (t)
(707) 937-5751 (t)
mccsd@mecen.org

MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
ACTION MINUTES - May 8, 2023

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FAIR STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS
(PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT LAW
Government Code §61000)2f§*

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 - CALL TO ORDER - OPEN SESS!ON 10:31a. m.

Present: Directors Ishvi Aum, Donna Femer Vice Presndent Jsm Sulhvan and pres:dmg was Pres:dent Dennak
Murphy , 5

Staff Present: Katie Bates, Board Secretary and Ryan Rhoades Dlstr;ct Supermtendent
Legal Counsel Present: Chris Hamer and Jim Jackson i ”

Public Present: Tom Tetzlaff | 3
AGENDA ITEM NO. 2. APPRGVAL OF AGENDA E

Director Feiner moved to approve the agenda Dtrector Aum 2", All in favor. Absent: Matthew Miksak
AGENDA ¥TEM NO 3- PUBUC COMMENT non agenda items

Mr. Tetzlaff vo;ced concerns about Groundwater Management

Director Femer stated how valuable it is to read meters

AGENDAITEM NO 4 —-ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION

Presenter: Dennak Murphy

AGENDA ITEM NO. G—RETURN FROM RECESS 11:30 a.m. Continue Special Meeting

a. Call to Order

Present: Directors Ishvi Aum, Donna Feiner, Vice President Jim Sullivan and presiding was President Dennak
Murphy

Staff Present: Katie Bates, Board Secretary and Ryan Rhoades, District Superintendent
Public Present: Steve Gomes

Board consulted with council regarding ongoing litigation and provided counsel with direction regarding Gomes v
MCCSD



BOARD OF DIRECTORS ~ ACTION MINUTES ~ Mav 8, 2023 Page 2ot 2
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7- PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Gomes asked the Board to repeat the report out from closed session
AGENDA ITEM NO. 8- ADJOURNMENT

Meeting is adjourned 11:32 a.m.

NOTICE: PUBLISHED MINUTES OF THE MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT MEETINGS

www.mcesd.com.

Thank you for your interest in the proceedings of the Mendocmo Clty Commumty Services District

Board of Dlrectors
STANDING COMMITTEES: E N g
Finance: ---Dennak Mur phy and Ishvi Aum
Personnel: - -=-= Dennak Murphy and Matthew Miksak
Plant Operations:--==-====n=--zmmmmommcmmmeee Dennak Murphy and Jlm Sullivan
Safety: mmmmmmmmme s Jim Sullivan

Donna Feiner and Jim Sulhvan
Donna F emer and Jlm Sulhvan

Street Lighting:- s
Groundwater Management

Respectfully submitted, -

Katie Bates‘ .



BOARD OF DIRECTORS — ACTION MINUTES — March 3, 2023 Page L of3
MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Post Office Box 1029

Mendocino, CA 95460
(707) 937-5790 (t)
(707) 937-5751 (1)

Fax (707) 937-3837 (f)
mcesd@mcen.org

MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT EMERGENCY BOARD MEETING
ACTION MINUTES - March 3, 2023

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FAIR STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS
(PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT LAW
Government Code §61000)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 - CALL TO ORDER - 9:02 am.

Present: Director Donna Feiner, Vice President Jim Sullivan, and presiding was President Dennak Murphy
Staff Present: Mr. Ryan Rhoades, District Superintendent, Katie Bates, Board Secretary.

Legal Counsel Present: None

Public Present: None

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2. - APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Staff Comment: Superintendent Rhoades notes that the meeting should have been titled a Special Meeting
rather than an Emergency Meeting

Board Action: Upon motion by Director Feiner and 27 by VP Sullivan, IT IS ORDERED to approve the agenda.
The Motion carried by the following vote:

AYE: 3

NO: 0

ABSENT: 2 (Miksak and Aum)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 -PUBLIC COMMENT

None

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 - COMMUNICATIONS

None



BOARD OF DIRECTORS ~ ACTION MINUTES ~ March 3, 2023 Page 2 of 3
AGENDA ITEM NO. 5 — NEW BUSINESS

a) Discussion and Possible Action to adopt RESOLUTION NO 2023-311 OF THE MENDOCINO CITY
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO AUTHORIZE THE PURSUIT OF STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL
BOARD FUNDING FOR RECYCLED WATER SYSTEM UPGRADES

Board Action: Upon motion by Director Feiner and 27 by VP Sullivan, IT IS ORDERED to approve
Resolution 2023-311. The Motion carried by the following vote:

AYE: 3

NO: 0

ABSENT: 2 (Miksak and Aum)

b) Discussion and Possible Action to adopt RESOLUTION NO 2023-312 OF THE MENDOCINO CITY
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT TO AUTHORIZE THE PURSUIT OF STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL
BOARD FUNDING FOR WASTEWATER SYSTEM PLANNING AND UPGRADES

Board Action: Upon motion by Director Feiner and 2" by VP Sullivan, IT IS ORDERED to approve
Resolution 2023-312. The Motion carried by the following vote:

AYE: 3

NO: 0

ABSENT: 2 (Miksak and Aum)

c) Discussion and Possible Action to approve cost up to $16000 to complete the fix to the influent pump and
suction line

Staff Comment: Ryan Rhoades
Board Comment: Director Feiner and VP Sullivan

Board Action: Upon motion by Director Feiner and 2 by VP Sullivan, IT IS ORDERED to approve
Resolution 2023-311. The Motion carried by the following vote:

AYE: 3

NO: 0

ABSENT: 2 (Miksak and Aum)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7- COMMITTEE UPDATES

Director Feiner and VP Sullivan give update on GWM Committee Meeting from 3/1/23

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8: MATTER FROM BOARD MEMBERS

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9: ADJOURNMENT

IT IS ORDERED to approve adjourning the meeting at 9:38 a.m.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS — ACTION MINUTES — March 2, 2023 Page 3 0f 3

NOTICE: PUBLISHED MINUTES OF THE MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT MEETINGS

»  Effective May 11, 2020, the Board of Directors’ minutes will be produced in “action only” format.
e Minutes are considered draft until adopted/approved by the Board of Directors

e Please reference the District's website fo obtain additional resource information for the Board of Directors:
www.mceesd.com.

Thank you for your interest in the proceedings of the Mendocino City Community Services District

Board of Directors
STANDING COMMITTEES:
Finance:--- Dennak Murphy and Ishvi Aum
Personnel: --~- Dennak Murphy and Matthew Miksak
Plant Operations: Dennak Murphy and Jim Sullivan
Safety: ~------ - - Jim Sullivan
Street Lighting:- Donna Feiner and Jim Sullivan
Groundwater Management:--===-==-=mmmmm- Donna Feiner and Jim Sullivan

Respectfully submitted,

Ryan Rhoades and Katie Bates



Memo

To: Board of Directors
From: Katie Bates
cc: Ryan Rhoades

Date: May 24, 2023

Re: Proposed 23-24 Budget

Staff worked with our bookkeeper and the Finance Committee over the last few months to come
up with the proposed budgets you see today. Staff took their suggestions and wound up making
a cleaner document.

Staff pulled the Outfall repair and maintenance out from general repair and maintenance since
the California State Lands Commission is requiring more annual attention be given it each year,
we decided to give it its own line item.

We have included $40,000 to replace our roof under repair and maintenance, but hope to be
reimbursed by GSRMA or FEMA.

We increased the legal notice/ publications budget from $0 last year to $25,000 to potentially
publish an updated Ordinance in the paper.

MCCSD has saved $20,000 in employee health benefits costs this year thanks to the Cafeteria
Plan the Board adopted in September of 2022.

Operational costs continue to rise, but thanks to the newly adopted rate increase, MCCSD is
projected to be able to put money in reserves for the first time in the past 3 years; upwards of
~$227,000. The District is in a better financial position than it was this time last year.



NMemo

To: MCCSD Board of Directors
From: District Superintendent
cc: Jim Jackson

Date: May 25, 2023

Re: Groundwater Management Report

The 2022-23 Rain Year

October 1, 2022 was the beginning of the 2022-23 rain year. Average annual precipitation in Mendocino
is 39.72 inches, and average rainfall in May is 1.41” inches.1.54” inches of rainfall has been measured

in the District for the month, as of May 25, 2023 (Figure 1, Table 1).

2022-23 Rainfall, Inches
1200 10.5¢
.00
B.O0
Ll
f.j
g .00 X
200
229
200 e D5B
o2 %87 o¥6° ong
G.00 = -
G Haov e lan Felx bar Juby Aug Sept
&fanth
mowesg 2023-23 Bainfal —pew Avarsge Monthiy
% act Mo Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July
f2022-2:’3 Rainfall 0.45 426 7.91 .70 4.54 10.90C 1.81 1.54 0.00 .00
2022-23 Cumulative 0,45 4.71 12.62 2232 26.86 37.76  39.37 40,91 40891 40,91
EA\"erag& Monthby 2.29 £.99 715 709 6.53 597 2.986 1.41 &7 07
E,A‘J‘Cumuh{i\fe 2.29 7.28 1443 21.52 25.05 34.02 38.98 38.39 35.86 38.93

2022-23 Rainfall to Date: 40.81
43 yr Annual Average Rain: 3872

Figure 1, Table 1



Total Rainfall for Rain Year 2021-22 was 33.82” inches. Mendocino received 85% of normal annual
rainfall during the last water year. By May 25, 2023, total rainfall since October 1, 2022 was 40.91"
inches, 103% of average annual rainfall.

l ] DAJLY TOTAL RAINFALL ]
2N2e-23 Fhavaniv B Faef
| [ Zatfuds 29A%
Data Fromn : Comrrmammnty Seevica Dnstrict 104 Loynk - LR AT
Day Oct | Hee | Dec Tan Feb Mar Sype ay Juin Jl Aug Sep
1 005 | 003 044 0.01 {04 0z
2 03 (186 003 106 L]
3 002 | o 032 047 (08
4 0oz | 068 | 030 154 181 041 00z
5 anl | ooy 03 024 00 15 .33
& onl o) 053 ) 0 104 Rl 02 L7
7 (83 | oo2 10 179 004 1.4
] 013 | 01 045 101 no? 034
9 149 .34 003 118 001 102
10 ooz voool oo 014 {135 0.05 ne
11 nae | oot 02 k) .35
1z e | o3 ooz 1.28 .46
3 oz | ooig oo 166 147
14 0at 117 015 118
15 U L 102 002 o
16 111}} .01 001
17 {111} o X1}
18 102 103 047 037 032 :
19 0ot 1ol (.15 002
20 1)1 0.35
a1 005 .24 030 naz
22 o0 .24 004
23 nn2 047 2
24 (i
2h (003
26 1h3 it {158
27 g L0k {13 L&
28 016 025 152 0ot
29 173 0m 106
0 L0 | nan 003
3l n2i 024
Sum 045 | 426 | 741 EXL 454 1640 LEL 154 o 1AL 0.m 000
Court 3 14 25 18 14 26 a 11 0 ] L'l ]
Max 021 ) 1w Lan (136 197 (79 a4 a0 0.00 .00 0.00
- Rabny Days 123 Water year Total Rafnfall 4191
e D aly Rairdal 197 | [

Table 1

2022-23 Rainfall Record




May 2023 Depth-to-Water (DTW)

The average DTW measurements District-wide in the 24 monitoring wells on May 22, 2023 was 13.45
ft., about 3.5 ft. lower than April 2023, about 2.2 ft. better than May of 2022, and about 4 ft. better than
May of 2021. Compared to a good rain year like 2019, which received 45.64” inches, the average depth
to water is currently about 2.1 ft. below average for the month.

Figure 2 May 2023, Depth-To-Water Chart

Average Depth-to-Water in Mendocino

[ 2] T W [+ I ¢ T B o~ M < WL M~ o0 a0 e N
(o] Q o o (=] 2 [ o =t Exl v b hond i = o) ot o ™ o o4
o QO C 0 o Qo C Cc 0o 0 C o0 e o000 o0 a0
T e e e SN e e e G e e L N L S e L e L S S
e D s s s s T s T T s T R e TR S ™ S i Stie:
ITSs5ssssssggggsigssgsy
Q0 0o o 0 CcC Cc 0 oo o o oo 8o o
e ~— ™ L] -t ™~ -t L] - vt i i -t i -t Ll i Rl el ~ d
4.00
6.00
8.00
10.00 05/20/20
s
“ 15.68 ft.
&
& 12.00
%} oo SELiEET
o 14.00
- 5/22/23
L
= 16.00 13.45f
3
18.00 05/26/22
15.65 ft
20.00
05/21/21
22.00 17.45ft
24.00

Following the Water Shortage Contingency Plan. The MCCSD Board declared on April 19, 2023 that
no water shortage exists within the MCCSD boundaries.

May 31, 2023 represents the next water shortage evaluation date. At that time rainfall totals will be
evaluated to determine if a water shortage exists. Current rainfall totals indicate no water shortage exists
within the MCCSD boundaries. The Superintendent recommends caution and conservation but continue
to follow the plan.



O e

A L b

R

—_—

N n

~J

2]

MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 2023 2024 Dept. 1 Dept.2 Dept. 3
2023 2024 Proposed Budget BUDGET WWwW GWM  G/Admin
OPERATING INCOME:
SEWER USE FEES 1,031,956 954,559 0 77,397
CHARGE FOR GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT 212,777 0] 182988 29,789
PERMIT FEES 2,100 0 2,100 0
FEES TO READ WATER METER 9,000 0 9,000 0
HILLS RANCH SERVICE 3,000 3,000 0 0
WATER METER SALES 5,220 0 5,220 0
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE: I 1,264,053 957,559 | 199,308 107,185
NON-OPERATING INCOME: WW GWM G/Admin
General Property Taxes 108,000 0 0 108,000
Savings Interest 3,160 0 0 3,100
Late Fees 5,000 0 0 5,000
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE: @ 116,100 0 0 116,100
TOTAL REVENUE 1,380,153 957,559 199,308 223285
OPERATING EXPENSES: GWM G/Admin
SALARIES:
WAGES 103,283 84,692 18,591 0
WAGES ADMIN 177,427 72,745 15,968 88,714
SALARY SUBTOTAL 280,710 157,437 34,559 88,714
BENEFITS:
RETIREMENT-CALPERS 28,000 16,520 3,640 7.840
DENTAL/OPT /HEALTH/LIFE B] 83,550 49,295 10,862 23,394
BENEFITS SUBTOTAL: 111,550 65,815 14,502 31,234
SIWORKMAN'S COMP 18,000 10.620 2,340 5.040
CALPERS-UNFUNDED LIABILITY 41,840 24,685 5.439 11,715
PR TAXES 34,372 20,279 4,468 9.624
LABOR SUBTOTAL: 486,472 278,836 61,308 146,327
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: GWM G/Admin
PROFESSIONAL FEES 18,000 0 18.000 0
LEGAL FEES 40,000 6,000 24,000 10,000
ACCOUNTANT/ AUDIT 18,520 0 0 18,520
GW MODEL UPDATE 0 0 0 0
PROFESSIONAL FEES SUBTOTAL.: 76,520 6,000 42,000 28,520
UTLITIES
PG&E AND TRASH 82,000 78,456 3,544 0
TELEPHONE/ CELL /INTERNET/ WEBPAGE 5.990 0 0 5.990
4BIOSOLIDS DRYER FUEL 24,000 24.000 0 0
UTILITES SUBTOTAL: 111,990 102,456 3,544 5,990
SUPPLIES AND MAINTENANCE
OUTFALL MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR 40,000 40,000 0 0
REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 176,000 125,031 49.552 1,417
SAFETY SUPPLY/EQUIP. 2,400 2,400 0 0
SUPPLIES/TOOLS @ 36,304 29.043 726 6.535




[SEEE IS (VR 61

[\

]
L

|CASH MARGIN

0|

()]

I9VEHICLE FUEL/MAINT 3,600 0 3.600 0
SUPPLIES AND MAINTENANCE SUBTOTAL 258,304 196,474 53,878 7,952
0ISWRCB ANNUAL NPDES/SSO (discharge permit) 18,000 18,000 0 0
HCOUNTY PERMIT FEES 3,000 3.000 0 0
2iBIOSOLIDS DISPOSAL 2,000 2,000 0 0
3ILEGAL NOTICE/PUBLICATIONS 25,000 0 25,000 0
4HPROPERTY AND LIABILITY INSURANCE 30,000 0 0 30,000
LAB SUPPLIES/TESTING 22,000 21,500 500 0
26/ TRAINING/EDUCATION 4,500 0 0 4,500
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES: 1,037,786 628,267 | 186,230 | 223,288
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
l1Loan Payment on Biosolids Dryer 35,380 35,380 0 0
2{Loan Payment on Plant Upgrades 79,828 79,828
RESERVES:
3{Capital Improvement(From User Fees) 77,500 77,500 0 0
410peration and Maintenance 92,659 79,585 13,078
S{Equipment Replacement fund (from User Fees) 57,000 57,000 0 0
TOTAL CASH ITEMS: 342,367 329,293 13,078 0
1

{i??l




Memo

To: Board of Directors
From: Katie Bates
ce: Ryan Rhoades

Date: May 26, 2023

Re: 21-22 Audit

Staff worked closely with our auditor at O’Connor and Associates to complete the Audit, ending
June 30, 2022. This was our first year working with this auditing firm and Staff was pleased with
their responsiveness and attention to detail.

Staff agrees with the auditor recommendations. Staff will work to formalize a capitalization policy
for leases liabilities and right to use assets over $35,000, and for equipment over $10,000 and
buildings and improvements over $50,000. Staff will also work with GSRMA to increase the limit
for crime coverage from $25,000 to $250,000.



MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

MENDOCINO, CALIFORNIA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

JUNE 30, 2022

O'CONNOR & COMPANY




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
Independent Auditors’ Report 1-2
Government-wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position 3
Statement of Activities 4
Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet 5
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet
with the Governmental Activities Statement of Net Position 6
Governmental Funds - Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 7
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities 8
Proprietary Fund - Balance Sheet 9
Proprietary Fund - Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balances 10
Propriétary Fund - Statement of Cash Flows 11
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 12-23
Required Supplementary Information (unaudited):
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Schedule 1 24

Schedule of Pension Contributions Schedule 2 25



1101 FIFTH AVENUE, SUITE 360
San RAFAEL, CA 94901

PH. (415) 457-1215

Fax. (415) 457-6735
www.maocpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Mendocino City CSD
Mendocino, California

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities
and the major fund of Mendocino City CSD, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Mendocino City CSD’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities and the major fund of Mendocino City
CSD, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof, for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the
State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Mendocino City
CSD, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mendocino City CSD’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information
that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.




Board of Directors
Mendocino City Community Services District — Page 2

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Mendocino City CSD’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Mendocino City CSD's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Management has omitted the Management's Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements,
Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

77 )
b Crtwsr ¢ oty
O’Connor & Company

San Rafael, California
May 1, 2023



Mendocino City Community Services District

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
invetory
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Compensated absences
Deferred revenue
Net pension liability
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2022

-3-

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type

Activities Totals
$ 619,135 $§ 619,135
28,269 28,269
2,625 2,625
5,826,301 5,826,301
2,039,286 2,039,286
8,515,616 8,515,616
73,076 73,076
20,426 20,426
6,228 6,228
112,000 112,000
195,002 195,002
55,066 55,066
2,341,800 2,341,800
2,730,522 2,730,522
198,788 198,788
198,788 198,788
5,468,721 5,468,721
190,661 190,661
$ 5859382 $ 5,659,382




I.VI

‘sjuswele)s efoueuy esay) jo ued jeibeyul ue aie sejou Huikuedwodoe ay |

28€'659'S $ 78e'659'S § - $ Buipus - uoiyisod JaN
981'606'G  98L'606'G - paesed Bujuuibaq - uonisod 1N
- 981L'606'S  (981'606'G) Juswisnipe popad Jold
981'606°G - 981°606'S ‘Buiuuibeq - uonisod JoN
(vog'svz)  (¥08°6¥2) - uopisod jou Uy ebueyn
8/v°/01 8/v'101 - SIgjsuel) pue senusAsl |eisush 2o
009'L 0091 - sBujuies Juswisaau|
8/8°601 2/8°G01 - xe} Auadoid
'soxe

:$8NUBABI |BIBUSY)

(zgz'/ise)  (zg8Z'.gE) - LTl 8 - $ 069'cz8 $ 680°cSe)L § JuswulsAob Atewnd jejo |
(zgz'/5€) (zgz'/5¢€) - L1221 - 069'cZ8 630°€GE’L sepiAnoe adAj-ssauisng jejo |
(zgz'Lse)  (zg8z'ise) - LLL2LL - 069'cZ8 680°€SE’L SOOIAISS 18)eM 8)SBM PUR J81BM PUNOID)

sapaoe adAj-ssauisng

. 3 z $ N $ - $ - ¢ - $ - $ seljiAloe jejuaWUIench (B0 |
'SBIHAOR |BIUBLLIUISADLD)
JUBWILLISACE AleWwilid

SE SBIIANDY SSNIAOY  SUOHNQIIUOD SUOHNQUIUOD S8JIAIBS 10+  sasuadxy suielbold/suonoun4
Aejoudold [ejuslulancs) 9 sjuBID B SjuBRID safieyn
1UBLIUIBAGS) ATBUIg [ended Bugelsdp % sea4 ‘seuly
sjassy JeN uj sebueyn S8NUBASY Welbold

pue anusasy (ssuadx3) 1oN

2202 '0g aunp papus Jesh syj Jo4

SAILIAILOY 40 INJNFLVLS
JOLISI( S821A19S AJUNWILWOD) AN OUIDOPUBH




Mendocino City Community Services District
Governmental Funds
BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 2022

ASSETS General Fund
Total assets $ -
LIABILITIES

Total liabilities -

FUND BALANCES
Unassigned -
Total fund balances -
Total liabilities and fund balances $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

-5.



Mendocino City Community Services District
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
WITH THE GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Total fund balances - governmental funds $

There are no reconciling items.

Total net position - governmental activities $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-8 -




Mendocino City Community Services District
Governmental Funds
STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Revenues: General Fund
Total revenues $ -

Expenditures:
Total expenditures -

Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures -

Fund balances, beginning of period 857,373
Prior period adjustment (857,373)
Fund balances, beginning of period restated -
Fund balances, end of period $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

_7.



Mendocino City Community Services District
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the year ended June 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

There are no reconciling items.

Changes in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-8-



Mendocino City Community Services District
BALANCE SHEET
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2022

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments $ 619,135
Accounts receivable 28,269
Inventory 2,625
Total current assets 650,029
Capital assets (Note 3):
Non-depreciable assets 5,826,301
Depreciable assets (net of depreciation) 2,039,286
Total assets 8,515,616
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources - Pension (Note 4) 73,076
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 9,553
Accrued expenses 10,873
Compensated absences 8,228
Deferred revenue 112,000
Total current liabilities 138,654
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year (Note 5) 55,066
Due in more than one year (Note 5) 2,341,800
Net pension liability (Note 4) 195,002
Total long-term liabilities 2,591,868
Total liabilities 2,730,622
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred inflows of resources - Pension (Note 4) 198,788
Net position;
Net investment in capital assets 5,468,721
Unrestricted 190,661
Total net position $ 5,659,382

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-9-



Mendocino City Community Services District

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Operating revenues:
Ground water and waste water fees
Property taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Waste water
Ground water management
Treatment
General and administrative
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Litigation settlement
Interest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Changes in net position

Net position, beginning of period
Prior period adjustment
Net position, beginning of period restated

Net position, end of period

$ 823,690
105,878

172117

1,101,685

419,687
66,348
52,326

148,760

144,003

275493
1,106,617

(4,932)

1,600
(186,316)

(60,156)
(244,872)

(249,804)

6,176,583

267,397)
5,900,186

$ 5,659,382

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-10 -



Mendocino City Community Services District
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees

Payments to suppliers
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Payments on long-term debt
Capital grants
Interest paid on long-term debt

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from non-capital and related financing activities:

Litigation settlement

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest earned

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents - end of period

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation

Prior period adjustment

Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Deferred outflow of resources - pension plan
Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Deferred inflow of resources - pension plan
Net pension liability
Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$ 1,118,437
(205,145)

(689,875)
223,417

(214,849)
(86,883)
112,000
(60,156)

(249,888)

(186,316)
(186,316)

1,600
1,600

(211,187)
830322

$ 619135
$ (4,932)

275,493
(267,397)

16,751
1
285,387
(11,042)
10,873
198,788

(280,506)
228,349

$ 223417

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

11 -



NOTE 1 -

Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization and Description of District

Mendocino City CSD (the District) was formed in 1971 under Government Code Sections 61000
et.seq. to collect and treat wastewater and maintain street lighting for the unincorporated town of
Mendocino. Pursuant to a ballot measure passed in 1985 and the California Public Contract Code,
the District was mandated to seek a permanent solution to the inadequate sources of water. These
solutions include working toward a system of conservation in conjunction with recycling for
irrigation and recharge. In 1990, the District assumed responsibility for groundwater management
as authorized by AB 786. Major sources of revenue for the District include water and waste water
service charges and property taxes.

B. The Reporting Entity

The financial statements consist of the District’'s proprietary enterprise fund, which consists of the
maintenance, operation and expansion of the water and sewer public utility system. These
services are proprietary in nature and are maintained as an enterprise fund. Enterprise Funds are
used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, andfor net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public
policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

C. Basis of Accounting

The proprietary enterprise fund financial statements required by GASB No. 34 are reported using
the “flow of economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, all of the District's assets and liabilities, including capital assets and long-term
liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statements of Financial Position. The Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Net Position presents changes in fund equity. Under the accrual basis
of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, while expenses are
recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

D. Net Position

The proprietary enterprise fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net
position categories are as follows:

* NetInvestment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any debt outstanding against the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

« Restricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of amounts with constraints
placed on net position use by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

+  Unrestricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of net position that does
not meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets. This may include
amounts board-designated to be reported as being held for a particular purpose.

The District may fund operations with a combination of cost-reimbursement grants and capital
grants. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net positions may be available to finance
expenditure. The District's policy is to first apply restricted resources, followed by unrestricted
resources if necessary.

-12-



NOTE 1 -

Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Estimated Budgets

The District adopts a preliminary budget for the following fiscal year, and a final budget for the
year. Budgetary revenue estimates represent original estimates modified for any authorized
adjustments, contingent upon new or additional revenue sources. Budgetary expenditure amounts
represent original appropriations adjusted by budget transfers and authorized appropriation
adjustments made during the year. All budgets are adopted on a non-GAAP basis.

F. Accounts Receivable

The District bills the local residents to cover costs related to groundwater management on a
quarterly basis and commercial customers on a monthly basis. The District is not able to
discontinue water service, as water comes from privately owned wells. If a customer does not
have a valid extraction permit on file, the District may impose a penalty of $100.00 per day.
Management believes all amounts are collectible and, accordingly, there is no provision for
uncollectible accounts reflected herein.

G. Inventories and Prepaid ltems

All inventories are valued at cost based upon physical determinations made at the end of each
year.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets in excess of $5,000 are stated at cost of acquisition. Significant improvements or
betterments to existing assets are capitalized; maintenance and repairs that do not extend the
useful lives of the assets are charged to operations. Costs incurred during the construction phase
of a project, including interest paid, are included in the construction in progress account and upon
completion of the project are transferred to capital assets.

Depreciation of capital assets is charged as an expense against operations each year and the
total amount of depreciation taken over the years, accumulated depreciation, is reported on the
Statement of Net Position — Business-type Activities Enterprise Fund as a reduction in the book
value of capital assets. Depreciation is charged as an operating expense on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Net Position - Business-type Activities Enterprise Fund. Depreciation
expense was $275,493 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Property, plant, and equipment of the District are depreciated using the straight line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Assels Years
Sewer and Water treatment plant 10-75
Sewer and Water collection system 15-75
Buildings and improvements 10-40
Vehicles, trucks and equipment 5-10

-13-



NOTE 1 -

Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

[.  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is defined as cash in demand deposit accounts as well as cash on hand. Cash equivalents
are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and investments so near their maturity that the risk of changes in value due to changes in interest
rates is negligible. These are generally investments with maturity dates within three months of the
acquisition date.

J. Compensated Absences

It is the District's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits.
The liability for unpaid vacation is recorded in the financial statements when the liability is incurred
and vacation is reported as the current portion of such compensated absences. The total amount
of compensated absences payable at June 30, 2022 was $6,228.

Employees accrue vacation benefits up to an accrual maximum of 144 hours after 11 years of
service. Upon termination, retirement, or death of an employee, the District pays any accrued and
unused vacation in a lump-sum payment to the employee or beneficiary in accordance to
applicable law.

K. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue is recorded to the extent that funds are received ahead of time where it qualifies
for income recognition. Deferred revenue consists primarily of intergovernmental grants received
during the current year for projects to be conducted subsequent to June 30, 2022.

L.. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District, as a
member of the Golden State.Risk Management Authority {GSRMA), has purchased various
insurance policies to manage the potential liabilities that may occur from the previously named
sources. GSRMA's purpose is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to
purchase excess insurance coverage.

M. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

N. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Mendocino City Community Services District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

-14 -



NOTE 1 -

NOTE 2 -

Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)

O. Reclassifications

Certain balances at, and for the year ended June 30, 2021, were reclassified to conform with June
30, 2022, balances.

P. Contingencies

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.

Litigation

The District is involved in litigation incurred in the normal course of conducting District business.
There is one specific case in Mendocino Superior Court, Gomes vs the District. The case was
settled and the District paid a settlement in the amount of $186,316 in May 2022.

Q. Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District reports
deferred outflows of resources for its pension plan.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District reports deferred
inflows of resources for its pension plan.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The District maintains a deposit account with Savings Bank of Mendocino County and an account
with Local Agency Investment Fund.

These funds have been segregated into accounts and at June 30, 2022, the balances were as
follows: v

2022
Cash and investments:
Demand accounts $ 347,460
LAIF 271,675
Total $ 619,135

The District's investment policy has been to invest idle cash in demand deposits, time deposits
and the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). investments are reported at fair value.

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities
with @ market value of 110% of the District’s cash on deposit or first trust deed mortgage notes
with a value of 150% of the deposit as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this
collateral is held in the District’'s name and places the District ahead of general creditors of the
institution. The District has waived collateral requirements for the portion of deposits covered by
federal depository insurance.

-15-



NOTE 2 -

NOTE 3 -

Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

CASH. CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (concluded)

LAIF is part of the Pooled Money Investment Account managed by the California State Treasurer
and funds are invested in accordance with Government Code Sections 16430 and 16480.
Participants in LAIF have the right to withdraw their funds with one day’s notice. At June 30, 2022,
the fair value of LAIF’s assets was approximately equal to the District's share as reported above.
Restriction of cash is required by Board resolution or District ordinance to equal required reserves.

Fair Value Hierarchy

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurements and Application, establishes a fair value
hierarchy consisting of three broad levels: Level 1 inputs consist of quoted prices (unadjusted) for
identical assets and liabilities in active markets that a government can access at the
measurement date, Level 2 inputs consist of inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, that can include quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities in active or inactive markets, or market-corroborated inputs, and Level 3 inputs have
the lowest priority and consist of unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. The District’s
holdings are classified as Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The District's holdings in the Local
Agency Investment Pool were not subject to the fair value hierarchy.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Balance Balance
Business-type Activities 6/30/21 Increase Decrease 6/30/22
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,600,000 § - § - $ 1,600,000
Construction in progress 4,032,677 193,624 - 4,226,301
Total capital assets, not being depr. 5,632,677 193,624 - 5,826,301
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewer & water facilities and
improvements 4,710,083 - - 4,710,093
Equipment and furniture 709,958 21,225 - 731,183
Vehicles 105,157 - - 105,157
Total capital assets, being depreciated 5,525,208 21,225 - 5,546,433
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewer & water facilities and
improvements 2,877,813 217,317 - 3,095,130
Equipment and furniture 306,285 46,290 - 352,575
Vehicles 47,556 11,8886 - 59.442
Total capita! assets, being depreciated 3,231,654 275,493 - 3,507,147
Total capital assets being
depreciated — net 2,293,554 (254,268) - 2,039,286
Capital assets — net $ 7926231 $ (60,644) $ - $ 7.865587

-16 -



NOTE 4 -

Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

PENSION PLAN

A. General Information About The Pension Plans

Plan Descriptions - All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate
in the District's Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan, cost-sharing multiple employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and Local
Government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of
the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can
be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time
employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily
reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service.
The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or
the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for the plan are applied
as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. :

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2022, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1,2013  January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensations 2.0% 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 7.0% 6.75%
Required employer contribution rates 8.794% 7.73%

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL)
requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual
basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.
The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial process. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate
and the contribution rate of employees. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts
are amended. Payments made by the District to satisfy contribution requirements that are
identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements are classified as
plan member contributions.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for
each Plan were as follows:

Miscellaneous

Contributions - émployer $50,629

17 -



NCTE 4 -

Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

PENSION PLAN (continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Quiflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

As of June 30, 2022, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the
net pension liability of the Miscellaneous Plans as follows:

Proportionate
Share of
Net Pension Liability
Miscellaneous $ 195,002

The District's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2021, and the
total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, rolled forward to June 30, 2021, using standard update
procedures. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2021, was
as follows:

Miscellaneous

Proportion - June 30, 2020 0.01047%
Proportion - June 30, 2021 0.01027%
Change — Increase (Decrease) (0.00020%)

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized pension expense/(credit) of $(769). On
June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date  § 50,629 $ -
Differences between actual and expected experience 21,867 -
Changes in assumptions - -
Change in employer’s proportion and differences.
between the employer’s contributions and the
employer’s proportionate share of contributions - 28,562
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments 580 170,226
Total 3 73,076 3 198,788

$50,629 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 3

2023 ) $ 41,625
2024 43,320
2025 44,355
2026 47,042
Thereafter -

-18 -



NOTE 4 -

Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

PENSION PLAN (continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pension
(continued)

Actuarial Assumptions - The June 30, 2020, valuation was rolled forward to determine the June
30, 2021, total pension liability, based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal in accordance with requirements of GASB 68
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15%

Inflation 2.5%

Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Mortality rate table Derived using CalPERS Membership Data for all Funds

Post Retirement Benefit Increase  Contract COLA up to 2.5% until Purchasing Power Protection
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power Applies.

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 15
years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP2016. For more
details on this table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report.

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was
7.15%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return - The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. In determining the long-term expected rate of
return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market return expectations as
well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset
classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10
years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach.

Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of
benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the
rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for
cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate
of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account
for assumed administrative expenses.

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows:

Real Return Real Return
Asset Class (a) Allocation Years 1-10 (b) Years 11+ (c)
Global equity 50% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed income 28% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation assets - 0.77% 1.81%
Private equity 8% 6.30% 7.23%
Real assets 13% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1% - -0.92%

Total 1 00%»



NOTE 4 -

Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

PENSION PLAN {continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pension (continued)

(a) In the System’s ACFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in
Short-term Investments; Inflations Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global
Debt Securities.

(b) An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.

(c) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

Subsequent Events - There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results
presented in this disclosure.

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources - Under GASB 68, gains
and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in
pension expense systematically over time.

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss
occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expenses. The
amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Net Difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments- 5-year
straight-line amortization.

All other amounts- Straight-line amortization over the expected average remaining service lifetime
(EARSL) of all members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) as of
beginning of the measurement period.

Expected Average Remaining Service Lives (EARSL) - The expected average remaining service
lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the total future service years by the total number of plan
participants (active, inactive, and retired) in the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer
Plan (PERF C).

The EARSL for PERF C for the measurement period ending June 30, 2021, is 3.7 years, which
was obtained by dividing the total service years of 561,622 (the sum of remaining service lifetimes
of the active employees) by 150,648 (the total number of participants: active, inactive, and retired)
in PERF C. Inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal to 0. Total
future service is based on the members’ probability of decrementing due to an event other than
receiving a cash refund.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage
point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

Miscellaneous

1% Decrease 6.15%
Net Pension Liability $470,721
Current Discount Rate 7.15%
Net Pension Liability $195,002
1% Increase 8.15%
Net Pension Liability $(32,932)

-20-



NOTE 4 -

NOTE 5 -

Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

PENSION PLAN (concluded)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pension (concluded)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Payable to the Pension Plan - At June 30, 2022, the District reported no amounts payable for the
outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year then ended.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt as of June 30, 2022:

Adjustments
June 30, & June 30,

Direct Borrowings: 2021 Additions  Retirements 2022 Current
2020 — USDA Certificates of

Participation $2,099,999 §$ - $ 64,499 $2,035,500 $ 32,000
2005 — California Infrastructure

and Economic Development 383,750 - 22,384 361,366 23,066

Total $2483749 § - 3 86,883 $2,396.866 § 55066

The District has a note payable with California Infrastructure and Economic Development for a
biosolids drying unit and housing for the unit for $650,000 that is originally dated April 2005. The
note matures August 2034 and has an interest rate of 3.05 percent. Interest payments are made
on August and February 1steach year. Principal payments are made on August 15 each year.

Principal interest payments on the debt for the succeeding years and thereafter are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 23,066 $ 11,022 § 34,088
2024 23,770 10,318 34,088
2025 24,495 9,594 34,089
2026 25,242 8,846 34,088
2027 26,012 8,076 34,088
2028 26,805 7,282 34,087
2029 27,623 6,466 34,089
2030 28,465 5,622 34,087
2031 29,333 4,754 34,087
2032 30,228 3,860 34,088
2033 31,150 2,938 34,088
2034 32,100 1,988 34,088
2035 33,077 1,008 34,085
Total 3 361,366 $ 81,774 3 443,140

The District has a note payable with United States Department of Agriculture that originated
November 2019 and matures November 2059. Interest is 2.38 percent. Principal and interest
payments are made annually on November 15t each year.

Principal and interest payments on the bonds for the succeeding years and thereafter are as
follows:

-1 -



Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT (concluded)

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 32,000 $ 48,343  § 80,343
2024 32,500 47,583 80,083
2025 33,500 46,811 80,311
2026 34,500 46,016 80,516
2027 35,500 45,196 80,696
2028 36,000 44,353 80,353
2029 37,000 43,498 80,498
2030 38,000 42,619 80,619
2031 39,000 41,717 80,717
2032 40,000 40,791 80,791
2033 41,500 39,841 81,341
2034 42,500 38,855 81,355
2035 43,500 37,846 81,346
2036 44,500 36,813 81,313
2037 46,000 35,756 81,756
2038 47,000 34,663 81,663
2039 48,000 33,547 81,547
2040 49,500 32,407 81,907
2041 51,000 31,231 82,231
2042 52,000 30,020 82,020
2043 53,500 28,785 82,285
2044 55,000 27,514 82,514
2045 586,500 26,208 82,708
2046 58,000 24,866 82,866
2047 58,500 23,489 82,989
2048 61,000 22,076 83,076
2049 62,500 20,627 83,127
2050 64,000 19,143 83,143
2051 66,000 17,623 83,623
2052 67,500 16,055 83,555
2053 69,500 14,452 83,952
2054 71,000 12,801 83,801
20565 73,000 11,115 84,115
2056 75,000 9,381 84,381
2057 77,000 7,600 84,600
2058 79,000 5,771 84,771
2059 81,000 3,895 84,895
2060 83,000 1,971 84,971
Total $_2.035500 $ 1091277 $ 3,126,777

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are assessed, collected and distributed by the County of Mendocino in accordance
with legislation. Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on real property
located in the County of Marin as of March 1. Secured property taxes are levied each November 1
on the assessed value of the real property as of prior March 1. Taxes are due in two equal
installments on December 10 and April 10 following the levy date. Under California law, secured
property taxes are assessed and collected by the counties at up to 1% of assessed value, plus
other increases approved by the voters. The property taxes are pooled and then allocated to the
District based upon complex formulas.

20



NOTE 6 -

NOTE 9 -

Mendocino City CSD
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

PROPERTY TAXES (concluded)

Unsecured property taxes are levied throughout the year beginning March 1 on the assessed
value of personal property as of March 1. For unsecured property tax bills issued between March
1 and June 30, the amount is payable by August 31. For unsecured property tax bills issued after
June 30, the amount of the tax is due 30 days after the bill is issued, but no later than February
28/29.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The prior year's financials statements incorrectly reported the District's activites as a
governmental- type activity, The June 30, 2021, ending General Fund balance of $857,373 was
corrected and reported as an enterprise fund business-type activity. The June 30, 2021, ending
Net Position of $6,176,586 was corrected and reported as an enterprise fund business-type
activity. In addition, the $(267,400) adjustment corrected the prior year's recording of deferred
outflows, inflows, and accumulated depreciation balances.

Business-Type Activities

Net position, beginning of period $ 6,176,586
Prior period adjustment (267.,400)
Net position, beginning of period restated $ 5909186
Government-Type Activities

Net position, beginning of period 3 857,373
Prior period adjustment (857,373)
Net paosition, beginning of period restated $ -

-23-



x.qNI

‘8|qejIeAR BW008(
Aeyy se pakedsip aq |im siesA feuonippy uoneusWS|dWI JO 183K IS | B} Sem vvow..mm\:mom_u.mhmm\nor‘_E:ozmct&c_;o:mgnoncm“c_m_ m_:vmgom*

BuoN-SUORdWNSSY Ul Sabueqn

BUON -SUWIS] Jjousy Ul sabueyy

FMNJAHOS OL S3LON

%E8'GL VAZAS %G1 ¥. %816 %60 L. %EL'EL %LV 1L %99°06 Ayjiqey) uoisuad ()0} ey} Jo
abejussiad e se uopsod Jeu Aseionpiy uejy

%8881 %09 ¥EL %S0 LGL %60°891 %¥0°eS1 %0769} %Z6'9LL %6€901 lloiked sahojdws-paianod Jo sbejusoiad
e se \ﬁ_:nm.__ co_wc®Q 1ou 8y} jo aleys mymco_tcaot.a

LPL'98L $ 8G.'8¢Z $ /6S'6¥Z $ 092'%¥Sz $ S0Z'€9Z $ 9LLBYZ $ 9Ll6¥z § 2BZE8l § lloiked @shojdwis - pasanroD
BOY'LGE § €16°L0€ $ 820'LlE $ z6L'/LZv $ L2e'TOV ¢ 620°€TY $ LOS'L¥Y $ 200°S6L  § Ayjicel) uoisuad 1eu ay) Jo sleys sjeuonlodold
%0G695°0 %067¥°0 %09EH°0 %0LEY0 %0810 %0ELY"0 %0910 %0L9¢°0 Aupigel uoisued jeu s Jo uoiodold

Aljiqe uoisuad J1oN auj Jo
aleyg ejeuoiodoid 8y} Jo inpayos
¥L0¢ GLoz 910¢ L10¢ 810¢ 61L0¢ 020c XA ole(] Juswsinses|y

AIMEVITNOISNId 13N 3HI 40 39VHS 3LVNOILI0d0ud S.1019181d IHL 90 ITNa3H08
(SIBaj gise,

2202 '0g 8unp jo sy
L 9Inpayos JOLIISI $90IAI8S AYUnWiuoD AlID) oUIDOpUB



lle

"9|qe|ieAR 8W008]

Asyy se pakeldsip aq jim sieak [guonippy "uoliejuswa|dwl JO JBBA IS| B} SBM 10z Jeak [BoSI "sieak o 10} UONBLLIOJUI MOYS O} Papusiul | 8|npaLos,

ejeq diysiequisi\ ,SHIdIBD WOl panLsg

£9-06

uoneyur Buipnioul ‘esuadxe EmE‘ummE_ uejd uolsuad Jo JoU ‘%G1,

8o1ues pue sbe Anus Ag salep
%08°¢C

sul-ubiens Jesh-g

siedh ¢

pasop ‘|lolhed jo ebejusalad [pas

Ayjeriopn

abe juswainey

uinjal Jo a)el JUBLWIISaAL|
sasealou; Alejeg

uonejuy

pOY1aW UOHEN|BA 18SSY

poued uoneziowe Bujuiew sy
poLiaw uoljeziiouly

s|dwex3 sisholdwg Juaby pue a|buig

'Sejel UoNNQIIUc) SUIiiIS}Sp 0} pasn SUOHJWNSSE PUE SPOUIBN

aby Aijug
0Z02/0€/9
%9t LL %EL 9L %0L LL %Z29'81L %186} %EB'CT  %L6'9C  %8ITCC  %0S2T
bPL'98L $ 8GL'82Z ¢ LBS'6YZ S 09Z'¥ST$ G0Z'€9Z$ OLL6YZ S 9LL6¥Z$ 262'€8L S 090°GZZ  $
- - % - ¢ - ¢ - ¢ - ¢ - & - & - 3
(vev'ze) (1iz'se)  (vzLvy)  (ovezy)  (161z2s)  (80S'6S)  (60229)  (£281%)  (629°09)
YeY'Ce $§ 1/28€ $ VL'WY $ 9¥EUV $ LGL'ZS $ 60565 $ 60229 $ €.5Ly § 62906 §
7102 GL02 9102 1102 8102 6102 0z0Z 1z0e 2202
SNOILNGIYINOD NOISNId 40 3 1naad0S
S8 A 61887,
220z '0¢ sunp jo sy
¢ 3Npayog JOLISIQ $80IAI9S AUnWiWoD AIID) OUDOpUB

ajep uonENBA

‘F1NA3HOS OL S310N

jjoihed aaho|dwea-paianoo
jo abejusoied e se suonpngUuon
leak [eos|y sy Buunp jjoihed sakojdwe-peianon

(sseoxe) Aousloljop uonNgLUIUON
SUOHNQUIUOD pauiLLIDIBp
Ajlelienioe ay) o} UonElaJ Ul SUCIINGLIUCYD
(paulws)ap Ajjeuenior)
uonNgLuod paiinbai Ajjenjoenuo)
SNOILNYIYLINOD 40 31NA3HOS
R EFEEINEEEE




MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS & MANAGEMENT REPORT

For the Year Ended
JUNE 30, 2022




Report on Internal Controls
Required Communications

Management Observations

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

2-3



1101 FiFTH AVENUE, SuiTE 360

! . SAN RaragL, CA 94901
O'CONNOR & COMPANY 15 118
% Fax. (415) 457-6735
www.maocpa.com

St

Board of Directors
Mendocino City Community Services District
Mendocino, California

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of Mendocino City Community Services
District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, we considered its internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of its internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Mendocino City Community Services District’s internal control.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or a combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal
control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or a combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected
by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and would not
necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses, as defined above. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

During our audit, we noted certain matters involving internal controls and other operational matters that are
presented for your consideration in this report. We will review the status of these comments during our next audit
engagement. Our comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with appropriate members
of management, are not intended to be all-inclusive, but rather represent those matters that we considered worthy
of your consideration. Our comments and recommendations are submitted as constructive suggestions to assist
you in strengthening controls and procedures; they are not intended to reflect on the honesty or integrity of any
employee. We will be pleased to discuss these comments in further detail at your convenience, to perform any
additional study of these matters, or to assist in imptementing the recommendations.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of Mendocino City Community Services
District and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

We thank Mendocino City Community Services District’s staff for its cooperation during our audit.

@ gjww» & Jpw{;m\g;

O’Connor & Company
San Rafael, California
May 1, 2023



1101 FiFTH AVENUE, SUITE 360
“ : ‘ San RAFAEL, CA 94901
O'CONNOR & COMPANY PH. (415) 457-1215
: %&W FAX. (415) 457-6735

WWW.maocpa.com

Board of Directors
Mendocino City Community Services District
Mendocino, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of Mendocino City Community Services District (the District) for
the year ended June 30, 2022. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information
related to our audit.

Qur Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated April 26, 2022, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance and
because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements
may exist and not be detected by us.

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the District. Such considerations were solely for the
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and
their application. The significant accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed
during the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the District during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the
financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accounting estimates in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting the
financial statements were:

= Accrual and disclosure of compensated absences.
= Capital asset lives and depreciation expense.

= Pension plan benefits actuarial assumptions.

= Fair value of investments and financial instruments.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Audit Adjustments

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. For the
purposes of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a proposed correction of the financial
statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our auditing procedures. An audit
adjustment may or may not indicate matters that could have a significant effect on the District’s financial reporting
process (that is, cause future financial statements to be materially misstated).

There were 6 audit adjustments proposed for June 30, 2022.

-0.



Board of Directors
Mendocino City Community Services District — Page 2

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to
the financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during
our audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated May 1, 2023.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, like obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that
may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’'s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Management's Discussion and Analysis which is required
supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RS! and do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the RS}.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Board of Directors of the District
and others within the organization, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.



Mendocino City Community Services District
MANAGEMENT REPORT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Current Year Observation

1. Lease Capitalization Policy

QObservation:

Mendocino City Community Services District (the District) implemented Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases, which became effective for the year ended June 30, 2022,
and had immaterial effects on the financial statements. This new standard requires leases o be
capitalized as intangible assets. In compliance with the new accounting statement the District should
consider formalizing a capitalization policy for leases similar to their capitalization policy for capital assets.
We also noted the District does not have a formal capitalization policy for equipment, buildings and
improvements.

Recommendation:

We recommend the District consider formalizing a capitalization policy for leases liabilities and right to use
assets over $35,000. We also recommend the District consider formalizing a capitalization policy for
equipment over $10,000 and buildings and improvements over $ 50,000.

2. Crime Insurance Policy

Observation:
The District’s insurance policy limit for crime coverage is $25,000.

Recommendation:

We recommend the District consider raising the limit to at least $250,000.

Prior Year Observations

There were no prior year observations that came to our attention.



Memo

To: MCCSD Board
From: District Superintendent
cc: [Name]

Date: May 26, 2023
Re: Electric Vehicle Charging Station

Mendocino County staff reached out to the District on 5/15/23 to see of the District had any
interest in further assessing the feasibility of developing an electric vehicle charging station on
District property.

The County is on a short time deadline for a Federal Grant, and would greatly appreciate District
support.

With Board approval, staff recommend sending the accompanying letter in support of the project.



MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 1029
Mendocino, CA 95460
Business Phone (707) 937-5790
mcesd@men.org

May 23, 2023

United States Department of Transportation

FHWA Office of Planning, Environment and Realty (HEP)
1200 New Jersey Ave SE

Washington, DC 20590

RE: Letter of Commitment for the Mendocino County Charging and Fueling
Infrastructure Discretionary Grant application

To whom it may concern:

The Mendocino City Community Services District (MCCSD) submits this letter to document its
commitment to participating in the project proposed in the funding application submitted by the
County of Mendocino to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Charging and Fueling
Infrastructure Discretionary Grant.

MCCSD is fully supportive of the County of Mendocino’s pursuit to implement EV charging
stations throughout the county and is interested in further assessing the feasibility of developing
stations on our property, including sites located at 10500 Kelly St, Mendocino and 10685 Palette
Dr., Mendocino. MCCSD has already engaged in preliminary discussions with Mendocino
County and is willing to grant site access and allow the installation of electric vehicle charging
stations at our property. Electric vehicle charging stations are integral to connecting rural
northern California to the Oregon border allowing EV drivers ready access to charging stations
in areas previously underserved. This development would have vast economic and touristic
benefits to both local towns and cities, as well as surrounding counties. Improving the
availability of this fueling infrastructure is critical for existing operations and future growth
opportunities in Mendocino County.

MCCSD recognizes the value that expanding the County’s EV charging network will bring and
the potential impacts to the economy and tourism that will result from broader deployment. We
understand that the County expects to work with a third-party vendor to assess and develop the
selected project sites and are committing to providing information and working collaboratively
with the County and its selected vendor to deploy EV charging infrastructure.

We tully support this project and hope to see it receive funding.

Sincerely,

Ryan Rhoades
District Superintendent
Mendocino City Community Services District



Memo

To: MCCSD Board
From: District Superintendent
cc: [Name]

Date: May 23, 2023

Re: Airline Emergency Memo

As most of you know the WWTP is nearly 50 years old, and aged infrastructure continues to
break down. The air supply line from the blower room to the treatment unit is one such piece.

The existing air supply line is 10” ductal iron pipe, burred approximately four feet below grade.
It runs about 150" under a building and pavement before resurfacing at the treatment unit.

During recent rains the ground above the airline has been observed bubbling, indicating multiple
air leaks. More recently the blowers have not been able to supply sufficient air to the treatment
unit to meet oxygen demand. This is another indication of airline compromise and air loss.

The goal was to wait until GHD had completed a WW infrastructure planning grant application
so we had some funding to evaluate and plan for airline replacement. More recent observations
indicate we do not have the luxury of additional time.

Staff have consulted with NCRWQCB engineer and regulator Matt Herman, to both advise him
of the concern, and brainstorm emergency solutions and funding sources. Staff have also been
consulting with GHD and a trenchless plumbing company to consider additional ideas.

The MCCSD Plant Operations committee met April 27, 2023 to discuss this matter and further
consider solutions. The recommendation was to get a GHD wastewater engineer on site to better
evaluate and propose options. Staff requested a task order from GHD. and once received.
approved a task order with GHD on 5/17/23. A senior engineer conducted a WWTP site
inspection on 3/18/23 and they are now working on a technical memorandum for the District due
in mid-June.

Current {oas include:

) Anew 275" underground 107 stainless steel airline routed around the front of building, under
the driveway, through the lawn, with a stub out for a possible future treatment unit. —Concerns:
cost, time, other underground utilities, etc.

v 300" above gro 7 stainless steel

ings, —Concerns: e

airline routed around the baci of the press
possible cost




3) A backup blower installed out on the treatment unit, direct access to air diffusers. Concerns:
cost, weight, sound, weather proofing, power supply

4) A temporary, rented blower on the treatment unit to be used until the primary airline can be
replace or repaired. Concerns: weight, power supply, sound, weather proofing, amount of time
needed.

5) Temporary use of backwash blower 4™ air supply line (4-5 days), while we try to slip
line/epoxy coat the existing blower line. Concerns: not sure the 4” line will supply sufficient
volume of air for 5 days, not sure slip lining will work, based on condition of pipe, and angle of
bends, not sure if more powerful blower might damage the old backwash airline.

6) A new blower installed in the new lab/garage building. This building is closer to the treatment
unit, has the space, and conduits for running sufficient electrical. Then run 30-40ft of above
ground 107 temporary airline pipe direct to the treatment unit distribution pipe. ~Eliminates the
concern for sufficient power on the treatment unit itself, eliminates the space, sound, and weather
concerns as it would be indoors, eliminates the trenching and or traffic hazard concerns.

A previous rough estimate of $75,000 was proposed to just replace the existing airline with a new
275° underground stainless steel airline. That estimate was based on using a smaller diameter
pipe. The engineers deemed it insufficient in size.

Due to the urgency of the matter the Plant Operations committee would like to see a solution
implemented quickly. GHD is working on a technical memo considering multiple factors, in
order to help determine the best option.

The proposal before you is to authorize the Superintendent to spend up to $100,000 to implement
a solution once the various options are further evaluated and a recommendation is received.

-Staff recommend a motion and vote in support of the expense.



Memo

To: MCCSD Board
From: District Superintendent
ce: [Name]

Date: May 23, 2023
Re: Updating District Records

Should District staff begin work to update District files in coordination with the Mendocino
Volunteer Fire Department?

Like many public agencies, District staff periodically work to review and update District records.
Part of the goal is to make sure properties are not over charged. In an effort to improve equity
and make sure everyone is treated the same, it is important to ensure all District records are
accurate and properties billed appropriately.

The Mendocino Volunteer Fire Department (MVFD) is another local public agency that works to
annually audit its records, related to property development, and ensure property owners pay the
correct amount for the level of development on each property.

An MCCSD records update has been suggested and encouraged by both community members
and District Board members. Following that recommendation, District staff have been in
conversation with MFVD staff to see if conducting a joint review seems appropriate, using
County records, MVFD records, and MCCSD records.

A phased approached to update records over the next six months could start with a review of
Fire Department records, in comparison with current MCCSD records; followed by a mailing or
survey to property owners asking them to confirm size and type of development on their
property. For properties that do not respond, or provide conflicting information, a site inspection
might be warranted.

MCCSD is working hard to make sure all property owners are treated fairly, and everyone is
treated the same. This includes updating our records to make sure all properties are paying their
proportionate share of costs based on current District Ordinances. Remember the groundwater
we use and the wastewater treatment system are shared by all of us.

Staff is developing of a list of goals for a records update, a time line, and the steps in the process.

Staff is requesting direction from the Board on whether to move forward with a review of records
and update of District files.



May 2023 Superintendent’s Report

Wastewater Treatment Plant:

Operators performed routine repair and maintenance to the WWTP in May of 2023. The best news to report
is that the Biosolids dryer machine is back in service. It has been in and out of service since the January
storms. Staff are working hard to catch up on drying. The jetter machine used for sewer main cleaning
received a fresh coat of paint. We are getting ready to start this year’s annual sewer main cleaning. Currently
the top operations concern is the condition of the air supply line. GHD had an engineer on site 5-18-23 to
help evaluate options. GHD is working to prepare a technical memo and recommendation.

Outfall Update: Alpha Diving reached out and is working on multiple job proposals and bids. One job is the
annual outfall survey required by the Ca State Lands Commission. Another job is a biological study and
report to meet NPDES permit requirements. The third job would be any recommended maintenance work.

We are still in communication with the Noyo Center about use of their ROV to inspect or film the outfall.
We have received one other estimate for future dive inspections. The District was recently sent some
qualification from Alpha, but continues refine an RFQ letter for outfall services.

Recveled Water:

MCCSD did not transfer arty recycled water during the month of May. MUSD did inquire about the
possibility of receiving recycled water this year earlier than usual. The District desperately needs upgrades to
this system if we are to continue providing recycled water. GHD continues to work on our grant application
to fund recycled water upgrades. The latest report from the State Division of Finance is that due to median
house hold income levels in Mendocino, at best we only qualify for 35% grant funding. On a $4 million
dollar project that means $2.6 million in additional loans. Staff are working with two additional grant writing
firms to explore options.

Biosolids Trailer and Transport:

MCCSD transported one load of biosolids in May of 2023. Our agreement with Waste Management for
continued disposal at Redwood Landfill expired May 12, 2023. We have twice requested an extension and
we are waiting on additional lab analysis for possible renewal.

Office Update:

Due to illness, vacations, and child care issues we have been short staffed most of the month. GSRMA
insurance notified the District on 5/17 that due to our good safety record and successful completion of the
LEEP program, we are getting an award of to $5,116.70. The new District web page is up and running. We
have received a number of complements. We are still working out some bugs and continuing to add more
information. We recommend you check it out when you can. Katie put a lot of energy into this and should be
recognized.

Grant and Project Updates:

Mendocino Unified School District has submitted the notice of intention to adopt a Mitigated Negative
Declaration following the CEQA process for the Water Supply and Storage Improvements project. The
public comment period is open May 11- June 9, 2023. MCCSD is not the lead agency but in an effort to
promote public awareness posted this notice on the District web page on May 11, 2023, and emailed it to
interested parties. On 5/22/23 MCCSD received the first payment installment from the UMBDR grant, of
around $109,000. We have issued payment to GHD.




On 5/25 staff was made aware of a letter sent out on 5/19 by the State Water Resources Control Board
Northern Engagement Unit of SAFER. MCCSD staff were surprised by this letter. To be clear, SWRCB does
not speak for MCCSD. At this time there is no project being initiated by MCCSD to secure funding for a
public water system. MCCSD applied to SAFER for technical assistance to conduct a feasibility study and
help with community engagement. Staff called our point of contact at SAFER and they were unaware of this
letter, and surprised by the wording. There are many questions to be answered and conversations to be had
before MCCSD goes down the path of a community water system, and we look forward to having those
conversations.

Safety Meeting and Plant Safety Inspection:
Safety Meeting and Plant Safety Inspection:
The 30-minute monthly safety meeting was held May 23, 2023. The topic was Slips, Trips, and Falls.

Sanitary Sewer Collection System:
There were no Sanitary Sewer overflow reports for the period April 12, 2023- May 19, 2023




